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3i EFV GP Ltd No. 05840692

Directors’ report

The Directors submit their report on 3i EFV GP Lid (the “Company”) with the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019,

Background and general information

The Company was established on 29 June 2006 and is domiciled in Engiand as a company under the
Companies Act 2006. The registered office of the Company is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is to act as General Partner of private equity Limited Partnerships
3i Europartners Va LP and 3i Europartners Vb LP.

Development

There have been no changes in the activity of the Company in the year and the Directors do not foresee
any future changes.

Results and dividends
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year after tax amounted to €128,054 (2018: €252,802).

The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the year (2018: €600,000).

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Directors

The following served as Directors throughout the year and to the date of this report except where
otherwise indicated:

lan Cooper

Jasi Halai
Jonathan Murphy
Kevin Dunn



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 05840692

Directors’ report (continued)

Going concern

The Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate resources to continue to operate for the
foreseeable future and for at least twelve months. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis for preparing the financial statements.

Exemption from presenting a Strategic Report

The Directors have taken the exemption available under Section 414B of the Companies Act in not
presenting a Strategic Report.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Pursuant to section 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006, each of the Directors confirms that: (a) so far
as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware; and (b} they
have taken all steps they cught to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of such information.

Auditor

Ernst & Ycoung LLP remains in office as auditor of the Company in accordance with section 487(2) of
the Companies Act 2006.

By Order of the Board

Jasi Halai
Director

Registered Office:
16 Palace Street
London

SW1E 54D

oL July 2019



3i GP 2013 Ltd No. 05840692

Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law the Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("EU™). Under company law
the Directors must not approve the financial statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the profit or loss for that pericd.

In preparing those financia! statements, the Directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show
and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial
statements.



3iGP 2013 Ltd No. 05840692

Auditor’s report

Independent auditor's report to the members of 3i EFV GP Ltd

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i EFV GP Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2019 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in equity, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to H and the related notes
1 to 9. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law
and Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

tn our opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the company's affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

. have been properly prepai’ed in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)} and
applicable jaw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report beiow. We are independent
of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC'’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require
us to report to you where:

. the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financiat
statements is not appropriate; or
. the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties

that may cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.




3i EFV GP Ltd No. 05840692

Auditor’s report (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information an d, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion therecn.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
. the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

] the directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies’ exemption from the

requirements to prepare a strategic report.



3iEFV GP Lid No. 06840692

Auditor’s report (continued)

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities set out on page 3, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Campany or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at https:/fwww fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiiity to
anyone other than the company and the company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

C[c‘rwf'f £ K}wj LLf

Maximiliano Bark (Senior statutory auditor}
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

2 July 2019




3i EFV GP I.td No. 05840692
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year to 31 March 2019
Notes 2019 2018
€ €
Revenue 1 2,566,437 5,071,739
Operating expenses 2 (2,438,114) {4,818,152)
Net interest expense (259) (785)
Profit before tax 128,054 252,802
Income taxes 4 - -
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 128,054 252,802
All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations.
Statement of changes in equity
for the year to 31 March 2019
Notes Issued Retained Total equity
capital earnings
€ € €
Balance at 1 April 2017 1 408,657 408,658
Profit for the year - 252,802 252,802
Dividend declared 5 - (600,000) (600,000)
Total equity at 31 March 2018 1 61,459 61,460
Balance at 1 April 2018 1 61,459 61,460
Profit for the year - 128,054 128,054
Total equity at 31 March 2019 1 189,513 189,514

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the notes on pages 12 to 16 form an integra!l part of

these financial statements.



3iEFVGP Ld No. 05840692
Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2015
Notes 2019 2018
€ €
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 189,514 61,450
Total current assets 189,514 61,460
Total assets 189,514 61,460
Equity
Issued capital 6 1 1
Retained earnings 189,513 61,459
Total equity 189,514 61,460

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the notes on pages 12 to 16 form an integral part of

these financial statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors.

Jasi Halai
Director

<YL July 2019




3i EFV GP Ltd No. 05840692

Statement of cash flows

for the year to 31 March 2019

Notes 2019 2018
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Revenue collected 1 2,566,437 5,071,739
Bank interest paid (269) (785)
Operating expenses paid 2 (2,438,114) (4,868,027)
Net cash flow from operating activities 128,054 202,927
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid 5 - (600,000)
Net cash flow from financing activities - (600,000)
Net cash flow 128,054 (397,073)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 61,460 458,533
Closing cash and cash equivalents 189,514 61,460

The accounting policies on pages 10 to 11 and the notes on pages 12 to 16 form an integral part of
these financial statements.



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 05840692

Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") as adopted for use in the EU
and in accordance and compliance with the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the foliowing standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements
with periods commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginning on or after
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Directors have performed an assessment and do not anticipate that IFRS 16 will have a material
impact on its results as the Company does not have any leases.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparaticn of the Company
accounts are disclosed below. These policies have been censistently applied and apply to all years
presented.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with and in
compliance with the Companies Act 2006, The financial statements are presented in euros, the
functional currency of the Company, being the currency in which it operates and generates revenue
and incurs expenses.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The most significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

D Revenue recognition Revenue represents Priority Profit Share which is variable consideration
receivable from Limited Partnerships. The Company's performance obfigations under the Limited
Partnership Agreements are the provision of General Partner services over time to the Limited
Partnerships. Revenue is invoiced quarterly and is recognised in the amount that is invoiced under the
cutput basis.

E Operating expenses Operating expenses are charged to the Statement of comprehensive
income on an accruals basis.

F Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position
comprise cash at bank.

10



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 05840692

Accounting policies (continued)

G Income taxes Income taxes represent the sum of the tax currently payable, and deferred tax. Tax
is charged or credited in the Statement of comprehensive income, except where it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also dealt with in equity.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. This may differ from the profit
included in the Statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the Statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit (‘temporary differences’), and is accounted for using the Statement of
financial position liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the Statement of financial position date.

H Dividends Dividends are recognised through the statement of changes in equity in the period
in which they are approved and declared.

11



3iEFVGP Lid

Notes to financial statements

1 Revenue

No. 05840692

20189 2018
€ €
Priority profit share 2,566,437 5,071,739
2,566,437 5,071,739
2 Operating expenses
2019 2018
€ €
Management fees 2,438,114 4,818,152
2,438,114 4,818,152

The auditor's remuneration for the year of €5,224 (2018: €5,134) was borne by 3i plc, a fellow

subsidiary.

3 Directors’ emoluments

The Directors of the Company are also Directors of fellow subsidiaries and receive remuneration from
3i plc. The tabie below shows the total emoluments received by the Directors from the fellow subsidiary.

2019 2018

€ €

Salaries and benefits 1,236,382 1,167,343
Bonuses 530,332 461,090
Compensation for loss of office - 118,358
Share based payments 1,066,435 891,224
2,833,149 2,638,015

Emoluments, including share based payments, attributabie to the highest paid Director were €1,613,725

(2018: €1,534,728).

The Directors do not receive any emoluments from the Company and do not believe it is practicable to
apportion the above amounts to their services as Directors of the Company. The Directors' services to

the Company do not occupy a significant amount of their time.

No Directors (2018: nil) of the Company accrued retirement benefits under the 3i Group Pension Plan,

a defined benefit contributory scheme.

The Company's contribution to pension schemes on behalf of Directors was €nil for the year to 31 March

2019 (2018: €nil).

12
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4 Income taxes

2019 2018

Current tax

UK Carporation tax - -
Deferred taxes

Crigination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Adjustment for prior years - -
Effect of change in tax rate - -

Total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive
income

Reconciliation of total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive income

The tax charge for the year is different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK, currently 19%
(2018: 19%), and the differences are explained below:

2018 2018

€ €

Profit before tax 128,054 252,802

zfrtzfgt;e(fzoor? 3ta>1< g;;tlplled by rate of corporation tax in the UK 24,330 48,032
Effects of:

Utilisation of tax losses surrendered as group relief 262,787 915,598

Non-taxable income (287,117) (963,630)

Total income taxes in the Statement of comprehensive
income

Deferred income taxes

Statement of Statement of
financial comprehensive

position income
2019 2019
€ €

Deferred income tax asset - -
Tax Losses - -
Deferred income tax liability - -
Accrued priority profit share - -
Deferred income tax asset/(liability) - -

Deferred income tax charge / (credit) in the statement of
comprehensive income

13



3i EFV GP Ltd

4 Income taxes (continued)

No. 05840692

Statement of Statement of
financial comprehensive
position income

2018 2018
€ €
Deferred income tax asset
Tax Losses - 985,765
Deferred income tax liability
Accrued priority profit share - (985,765)

Deferred income tax asset/(liability)

Deferred income tax charge f (credit) in the statement
of comprehensive income

At 31 March 2019, 3i EFV GP Limited had tax losses carried forward of €6,182,169 for which no deferred
tax asset has been recognised. It is considered uncertain that there will be sufficient taxable profits in
the future against which the associated deferred tax assets can be offset and therefore the assets have

not been recognised.

The UK Government announced as part of the Finance Act 2016 a reduction in the UK corparation tax
rate to 17% (effective from 1 April 2020} which was substantively enacted on & September 2016 and
received Royal Assent on 15 September 2016. This will affect the rate at which future UK cash tax will
be payable and the rate at which deferred tax assets are expected to reverse.

5 Dividends declared

2019 2018
€ €
Declared and paid during the year - 600,000
- 600,000
6 Issued capital
Authorised
number of Amount
shares €
Allotted and calied up ordinary shares of 1 1
£1 each (€1.3786)
At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 1 1

14




3iEFV GP Ltd No. 05840692

7 Parent undertaking and controlling party
The Company's immediate parent undertaking is 3i Holdings plc.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is 3i Group pfc ("3i"} which is
incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. Copies of its group financiai
statements, which include the Company, are available from 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E 5JD.

8 Related parties

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with related
parties. Those transactions with Directors of the Company are disclosed in note 3. There are no other
key management personnel. Each of these categories of related parties and their impact on the financial
statements is detailed below.

Income from Limited Partnerships

The Limited Partnerships are related parties, being the entities for which the Company acts as General
Partner. Total revenue from Limited Partnerships, including the amount of accrued fees receivable at
the end of the year, is detailed below:

2019 2018
Priority Accrued at Priority Accrued at
Profit Share end of year Profit Share end of year
€ € € €
3i Europartners Va LP 1,217,079 - 2,405,292 .
3i Europartners Vb LP 1,349,358 . 2,666,447 B}
2,566,437 - 5,071,739 -

Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

Management Fees

Total fees paid to 3i pic, which is appointed by the Company to manage certain Limited Partnerships,
including the amount of accrued fees due at the end of the year, are detailed below:

2019 2018
Management Accrued at Management Accrued at
Fees in Year end of year Fees in Year end of year
€ € € €
Management fees paid to 3i 2,438,114 - 4,818,152 -

plc

15



3i EFV GP Ltd No. 05840692

9 Financial risk management

The Company is a subsidiary of 3i. 3i sets objectives, pclicies and processes for managing and
monitoring risk as set out in the Directors' report in the 3i annual report. This note provides further
information on the specific risks faced by the Company. ’

Capital management

The capital structure of the Company consists of equity. There is sufficient capital in the Company to
cover liabilities and the Company is free to transfer capital to the parent company subject to maintaining
sufficient reserves to meet statutory obligations. No significant constraints have been identified in the
past.

Credit risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant credit risk as the Company has no receivables as
at 31 March 2019.

Liquidity risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant liquidity risk as the Company had no trade and
other payables as at 31 March 2019.

Market risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant market risk as the Company does not hold fixed or
floating rate loans or liabilities or investments which are exposed to market fluctuations.

Currency risk

The Directors do not believe that there is significant currency risk as in the year ended 2019 the
exposure of the Company to foreign currencies was nil and is expected to remain nil in future years.

16
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Annual report and accounts for the year to 31 March 2019
Registered number: LP11419

To be filed with accounts of 3i EFV GP Ltd: Company number 5840692
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3i Europartners Va LP LP11419
Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the "Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Eurcpartners Va LP (the
“Partnership”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Resuits and business review

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deals across all regions
in which 3i Group ple (“3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2019 2018

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year before 333,079,179 346,641,953
carried interest expense

Total comprehensive income for the year 261,387,720 271,888,274

Net assets attributable to Partners 838,843,306 1,001,775,810

Total attributable to Partners 1,178,677 339 1,269,818,384

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexed financial statements.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by asset cash flows derived from portfolic income of €876,175 and proceeds from investments of
€430,036,476. The Partnership also distributed €429,078,399 io its Partners. Other contributing factors to
performance include the unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investments of €287,891,219.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a reqular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

»  Market price risk

s  Cumrency risk

e Concentration risk

+  Credit risk

o Liquidity risk

* Interest rate risk

+  (Capital management



3i Europartners Va LP LP11419

Strategic report (continued)

The Manager has established a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership fram events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance objectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and manitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership’s associated risk policies are found in note 9.

Far and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Ved

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

-

1> May 2019
Registered office:
16 Palace Street

London
SWH1E 5JD




3i Europartners Va LP LP11419

Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members’ raport and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 29 June 2008 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Parinership Act 1807. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i EFV GP Ltd.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deals across all regions
in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in follow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Partners’ interests

A summary of movements in Partners’ accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 1.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolia. The Manager is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient cash resources to ensure that the Parinership can
continue to operate for the foreseeable future and for at least 12 months. Once the Partnership’s life has ended in
November 2019 per the Limited Partnership Agreement, the Manager will act in its capacity as the liquidating
trustee to realise the Partnership’s assets in an orderly manner. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial

statements on a going concem basis.
Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date.



3i Europartners Va LP LP11419

Members’ report (continued)

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the Members confirms that: {a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Ermnst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 12.4 of the Limited Partnership Agraement ("LPA™) and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments pic

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

~—
iy May 2019

Registered office:
16 Palacc Strect
London

SW1E 5JD




3i Europartners Va LP LP11419

Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members' report and the
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members' report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS") as adopted by the Eurcpean Unian {"EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager is required to:

s« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state that the financiai statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial staterents; and

= prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below responsibilities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership’'s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 200€ as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and hence for taking reasonabie steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor's report to the Members of 3i Europartners Va LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Europartners Va LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts, the Statement
of financial position, the Statement of cash flows, the accounting policies A to N and the related notes 110 12. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (iIFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its
profit for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit avidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report
10 you where:

= the members’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
i& not appropriate; or

« the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.
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Auditor’s report {continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to

report that fact.
We have nothing fo report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships

It our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

s the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ the strategic report and the members’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the strategic report or the members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you i, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,; or

e certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+« we have not received all the infermation and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members

As axplatned more fully in the Members' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 8, the members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaterent, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the ecunomic decisions of users taken an the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financlal
Reporting Council's websile at https:/www fre. org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made sclely to the gualifying partnership’'s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships Qur audit work has haen undertaken so that
we might state to the qualifying partnership's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
tn anvnna nther than tha aualifving nartnarshin's mamhars. as a hodv for our audit work. tor this renort. or tor the

opinions we have formed.

J}Mff’f€f5v7=LLP

Maximiliano Bark {Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behaif of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

vate [ /5 20/
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2019

LP11418

Notes 2019 2018
€ €
Portfolio income 1 876,175 1,010,970
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 287,891,219 358,597,008
Realised profits over value on the disposal of investments 2 45 842 827 14,641,855
Gross investment return 334,610,221 374,249,833
Priority profit share 10 (1,219,579) (2,407,792)
Operating expenses 3 (238,935) (440,711)
Net interest expense (73,902) (88,071)
Exchange movements 1,374 (18,161)
Withholding tax expense - {24,653,145)
Profit and "fota_! comprehensive income for the year 333079170  346.641953
before carried interest expense
Carried interest expense 7 (71,691 459) (74,753,679
261,387,720 271,888,274

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the year

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 14 tc 18 and the notes on pages 17 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

10



3i Europartners vVa LP

Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11419

Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 1,316 - 1.001,774494 1,001,775,810
Drawdowns from Partners - 4,858,175 - 4,858,175
Distributions to Partners (4,858,175) (424,220,224) (429,078,399)
1,316 577,554,270 577 555,586
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 261,387,720 261,387,720
Closing balance of Partnars’
accounts 1,316 - 838,941,980 838,943,306
for the year ended 31 March 2018
Capital Loan Profit and
Contributions account loss account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners' accounts 1,316 44,722,738 864,761,366 909,485,420
Drawdowns from Partners - 3,929,377 - 3.929,377
Digtributions to Partners - (48,852,115) {134,875,145) (183,527,261}
1,316 729886220 729887536
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 271,888,274 271,888,274
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 1,316 - 1,001774,494 1001,775810

The accounting palicies on pages 14 to 16 and the notes on pages 17 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

11
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Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019

Notes 2019 2018

Assets € €
Non-current assets
Investments 4

- Unquoted investments 1,174, 870,842 1,266 ,495,209
Total non-current assets 1,174 870,842 1,266,495,309
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,644,451 3,395,712
Receivables 5 222,203 100,749
Total current assets 3,866,654 3,496 461
Total agssets 1,178,737 496 1,269,991,770
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interest payable 7 (339,734,033) (268,042 574)
Total non-current liabilities (339,734,033) (268,042 574)
Current liabilities
Payables 6 (60,157) (173,386)
Total current liabilities (60.157) {173,386)
Total liabilities (339,794,190) {268,215,960)
Net assets attributable to Partners 838,943,306 1,001,775,810
Represented by:
Capital contributions 1,318 1,316
Loan account - -
Profit and loss accounts 838,941,990 1,001,774 494
Net assets attributable to Partners 838,943,306 1.001,775,810
Carried interest allocation 339,734,033 268,042,574
Total attributable to Partners 1,178,677,339 1,269,818,384

The accounting policies on pages 14 to 16 and the notes on pages 17 to 24 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For and on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
ligthorised Signatory

> May 2019

12
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2018

LP11419

Notes 2019 2018
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 {4,770,085) {5,839,015)
Proceeds from investments 430,036,476 174,394,820
Portfolio income received 876,172 309,679
Other amounts paid fo portfolio companies {121,454) -
Bank interest received 543 2,042
Bank interest paid {74,445) {90,113)
Priority profit share paid (1,219,579) (2,407, 792)
Operating expenses paid (258,638) {375,000)
Net cash flow from operating activities 424,468,990 165,994,522
Cash flow from financing activities
Drawdowns 4,858,175 3,929,377
Distributions paid (429,078,389) (183,527 ,261)
Net cash flow from financing activities (424,220,224) (179,597 684)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 248,766 {13.603,362)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 3,395,712 17,024,178
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 2n (25,104)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,644,451 3,385,712

The accounting policies on pages 14 to 16 and the notes on pages 17 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

13
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the Intemationai Accounting Standards Board ('IASB”) as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the following standards and interpretations fo be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginning on or after
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 16 will have a material impact on
its resulls as the Partnership does not have any leases.

B Basis of preparation The principat accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below. These paolicies have been consistently applied and apply to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functional
currency of the Partnership, being the cumency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are denominated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptfions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future pericds If the revision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payable. The valuation methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policy E discussed in note 4.
The methodology for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy N.

Carried interest payable is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investments
are sold at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend on the cash realisations of these portfolic investments and valuations may change significantly in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in note 7.

The Manager has concluded that the Parinership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in porifolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capitai appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monsetary assets and liabilittes denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are
translated into euros at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction and exchange differences arising on
settlernent or translation of monetary items are taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.

14
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Accounting policies (continued)

E Investments Investments represent equity and loan instruments which are managed on a fair value basis.
Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is
under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are classified as fair value through profit and loss or are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair
value in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital ("IPEV") valuation guidelines, with
reference to the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settied in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year. )f the fair value of an investment is assessed o be below the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value® is the term used 1o describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfotio cost with an equal reduction
in portiolic value.

Loans and equity are vaiued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested ang disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately. To
arrive at the fair value of the unquoted equity and loan instruments, the entire fair value of the asset is estimated.
The value is then distributed amongst the different loan, equity and other financial instruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recognised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the following components:

|. Realised profits or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair value
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of ioans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period.

li. Unreafised profits or losses on the revaiuation of investments are the movement in the camying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period.

itl. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probabie that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable.

- Transaction fees is recognised to the extent not already offset against priority profit share.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid to the General Partner, as a first charge on amounts
availabie for allocation among Partners, as determined by the LPA. The priority prafit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

| Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivaients in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short tarm deposits held at call with financial institutions.

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deductian to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when a distribution notice is issued by the Manager.

15
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Accounting policies (continued)

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and loan commitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

L Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. Assets are reviewed for recoverability and impairment using the expected credit loss model
simplified approach. The Partnership will recognise the asset’s lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting
period where applicable in the Statement of comprehensive income.

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered ta be payabie in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement

of financial position date.

N Carried interest |n accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitied to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, including the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accrual is
made equal to the Founder Partner’'s share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase or decrease in the carried interest due 1o the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried
interest expense in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carried interest
results from a decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.

16
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Portfolio Income

2019 2018

€ €

Interest incoms 688,548 1,010,970
Transaction fees 187,627 -
878,175 1,010,870

2 Realised profits over value on the disposal of investments

Unquoted 2019

Investments Total

€ €

Proceeds from investments gross of withholding tax 430,128,597 430,128,597
Opening carrying value of disposed investments (384,285,770) (384,285,770)

45,842 827 45,842 827

Unquoted 2018

investments Total

€ €

Proceeds from investments gross of withholding tax 199,207 890 199,207,820
Opening carrying value of disposed investments {184,566,035) (184,566,035)

14 641 855 14,641,855

3 Operating expenses

2019 2018
€ €
Audit fees 13,919 13,681
Bank charges 545 423
Administration expenses 26,178 28,218
Tax compliance fees 14,865 15,160
Annual investor meeting and Advisory Board expenses 77,0683 92,814
Portfalic company related costs 11,011 205,954
AIFMD depository fees 76,396 72,284
Fund reporting fees 18,960 12,167
238,935 440,711

17
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4 Investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises of equity instruments of €1,156,989,633 (2018: €1,133,505,854)
and loan instruments of €17,881,209 (2018:; €132,989 455).

The holding pericd of the Partnership's investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following
hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments

Level 1 Quoled prices (unadjusted) from active markets No Level 1 financial instruments

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments
that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market Unquoted equity instruments and loan
data instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and Ioan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as foliows:

2019 2019 2019 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Unquoted investments - - 1,174,870,842 1,174,870,842
- - 1,174,870,842 1.174,870,842

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Unquoted investments - - 1,266,495,309 1,266,495,309
- - 1,266,495,309 1,266,495,309

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Parntnership did not hold any Level 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy autherised above. When an investment's characteristics change during
the financial period and investments no longer meaet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of
Level 3 in the year (2618 nil).

18
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4 Investments (continued)
Lavel 3 fair value reconciliation

2019 2018

€ €

Qpening fair value 1,266,495,309 1,085,924 030

Additions - cash 4,770,085 5.839,015

Additions - interest 3,637,395 7814214

- Of which capilaiised at nil value (3.637,395) (7,112,923}

Disposals, repayments and write-offs (384,285,771) {184 566,035)

Fair value movement 287,891,219 358,597,008

1,174,870,842 1,266,495,309

Closing fair value

A net profit of €334,610 221 (2018: €374,24% 833) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive Income as
portfolio income, unrealised profits on the revatuation of investments and realised profits over value from the
disposal of investments from Levei 3 assefs.

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as describad in accounting policy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2019 and classified as Level 3, 100% (2018: 73.32%) were valued using a
multiple of earnings and no assets (2018: 26.68%) were valued using an alternative methodelogies.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The valuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a multiple of earnings-based valuation. The multiple is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples. Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are selected and then adjusted
for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and reiative performance. The value weighted average multiple
used when valuing the portfolio was 18.78x (2018: 16.30x).

If the multipie used to value each unquoted investment valued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2019
decreased by 5%, the impact on the investment portfolio would be a decrease of €77.47m (2018: €67.61) or 6.59%
(2018: 7.28%). If the multiple increased by 5% then the impact on the investment partfolio would be an increase of
€ 77.47m (2018: € 67.61) or 6.59% (2018:7.28%)},

5 Receivables

2019 2018

€ €

Other receivables 222,203 100,749
222,203 100,749
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6 Payables
2019 2018
€ €
Accrued expenses 60,157 113,380
Other liability - 60,006
60,157 173,386
7 Carried interest payable
2018 2018
€ €
Opening carried interest payable 268,042,574 193,288,895
Carried mterfest Payable rec_:agmsed in the Statement of 71.691.459 74753679
comprehensive income during the year
339,734,033 268,042,574
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 339,734,033 268,042 574

Carried interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. i the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €354,910,178 (31 March 2018: €288,294,336).

Our policy is to classify our investment portfolio as non-current on the basis that there is always a very high degree
of uncertainty about a transaction oceurring within one year. Consistent with such policy, the carry payable has
been similarly treated.

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would result in a
€11,246,328 increase in carried interest payable (31 March 2018: €11,775,280).

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all of individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would result in a
€11,246,328 decrease in carried interest payable (31 March 2018: €11,775,280).

8 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Parinership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.

9 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital management risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.
The Partnership's investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market

conditions within which the investments operate. The Partnership’s market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the carefui consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 4.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency rigk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 20189, the
Partnership was exposed to currency risk relating to EUR/GBP and EUR/USD. At 31 March 2019, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Pariners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
following table.

5% 10% 15%
As at 31 March 2019 € € €
GBP ' (1,821) (3.477) (4,988)
UsSD 393 751 1077
(1,428) (2,726) (3.911)
As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP (1.867) (3,564) (5.113)
SEK 706,496 1,520,584 2,181,707
Uso 240 850 a2
794,969 1,517,670 2,177,526

In addition to this, the tabie below sets out the Partnership’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Partnership's assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership's total assets were
€1,178,737.496 (2018: €1,269,991,770) and the fotai liabilities {including accrual for carried interast) were
€339,734,033 (2018: €268,215,960).

% of total Partnership assets 2019 2018
SEK - 1.3%
- 1.3%
% of total Partnership liabilities 2019 2018
GBP - -

2019: 100.0% {2018: 100.0%) of the Partnership's liabilities were denominated in euros.

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as wel! as through the maturity profile of its investment portiolic.

The Partnership participates in two portfolio invesiments and, as a consequence, the aggregate return of the
Parthership may be materially and adversaly affected by the unfavourable performance of the largest invesiment.
This investment is concentrated in the non-food discount retail industry and thus the Partnership's performance will
be closely linked ta the performanca of this industry and the Partnership could be saverely impacted by adverse
developments affecting this industry.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of

the Partnership.

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership’'s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investments is
based on the financial performance of the individual portfolic companies. For those assets that are not past due it
is befieved that the risk of defauit is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership's investment. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within the overall
assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired. Hence, no separate maximum
exposure to credit risk disclosure is provided for these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
commitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds o be heid by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopled to ensure sufficient cash is availabie for
both operational expenses and investments through capital cafls from Pariners and the retention of proceeds from
investments. As at 31 March 2019, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €30,238,763 (2018: €35,096,938)
which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership’'s investments are subject to liquidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2019,
the Partnership held €1,174,870,842 (2018; €1,266,495,309) in investiments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

Liabilities arising from Carried interest payable will only crystallise if and when the performance conditions are met,
and will only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment of cash distribution from underlying
assets, which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meet them when they fall due (see accounting policy
N).

The following table analyses the Partnership’s liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
fiows.

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

less than 1 between more than 5
As at 31 March 2019 year 1-5years years Totai
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 60,157 - - 60,157
60,157 - - 60,157

As at 31 March 2018

Other payables and accrued expenses 173,386 - - 173,386
173,386 - - 173,386

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €339,734,033 (31 March 2018: €268,042,574) has no stated
maturity as carried interest resuits from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with
certainty the timing of when the investments will be sold. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into

relevant maturity groupings.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instruments are in
fixed rate loans.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and ioss
accounts, which totalled €838,843,306 (2018: €1,001,775,810) at the reporing date. There are no externally
imposed capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Partner
may request additional contributions from the Pariners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or
investment purposes ancd distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income
yield. No changes were made in the Partnership’s objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital
during the year ended 31 March 2019

10 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
parties. Each category of related party and its impact on the financial statements is detailed befow.

Carried interest

The Parinership pays carried interest to the Founder Partner when certain conditions relating to the performance
of the Partnership are met. The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2019 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019 are set out in note 7.

General Partner

The Partnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment period, the General
Partner is entitled to receive a prionity profit share equal to 1.75% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective refated party is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activiies. After the investment period expiry date, the priority profit share is aqual to 1.25% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investrents that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the refevant
accounting period. The IPartnership had stopped paying priority profit share after 15 November 2018, being the
twelfth anniversary of the Partnership's final closing date.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings plc, a subsidiary of 3i.

2018 2018
Statement of comprehensive Income € €
Priority profit share 1,219,579 2,407,792

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

DQn‘ng the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation o cperational and investment expenses.

2019 2018
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Racharged costs 161,993 226,489
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year 40,811 -

23



3i Europartners Va LP LP11419

10 Reilated parties {(continued)

Related undertakings

The Partnership makes investments in the equity of unquoted and quoted investments where it does not have
controi but may be able to participate in the financial and operating policies of that company. It is presumed that it
is possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or eguail to 20%. The total amounts
included for investments where the Partnership has significant influence but not control are as follows:

2019 2018
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Portfolio income 721,904 1,010,870
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments (3,013,469) 97,424 818
Realised profits on the disposal of investments 35,097,211 12,486,994
Statement of financial position
Unguoted investments 17,881,208 378,232,033

11 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Fartnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires disciosure of cartain information about the Partnership’s related undertakings and this
is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings.
In this context, significant means a shareholding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominal value of any class of

shares.
The Partnership’s related undertakings at 31 March 2019 are listed below.

Associates
Country of -
Description Holding / share class Address incorporation :;?;mal
or residence ty
. . Investment
Chrysanthes 1 Sarl  24.08% of Ordinary shares §rue Sainte Zithe, L-2763 Luxembourg Holding
Luxembourg Vehicle

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries or joint ventures.

12 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controlling party.
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Strategic report

The Directors of 3i Investments plc (the “Manager”) present their strategic report on 3i Europartners Vb LP (the
“Partnership®) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Results and business review

The principat activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deais across all regions
in which 3i Group plc ("3i") invests worldwide.

The main key performance indicators are as follows:

2019 2018

€ €

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year before 369,071,598 384,077,388
carried interest expense

Total comprehensive income for the year 289,639,513 301,257,143

Net assets attributabie to Partners 928,440,782 1,109,033,275

Total attributable to Partners 1,304,668,410 1,405,828,718

The results for the year and financial position of the Partnership are as shown in the annexad financial statements,

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied with the performance of the Partnership for the year, which has been
driven by asset cash flows derived from portfolio income of €971,048 and proceeds from investments of
€476,679,259. The Partnership also distributed €475617,110 to its Partners. Other contributing factors to
performance include the unrealised gains on the value of the remaining investments of €319,116,710.

Future developments

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term.

Risk management

The Manager evaluates the Partnership’s risk appetite on a regular basis. The principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Partnership are considered to be the following:

*«  Market price risk
*  Currency risk
« Concentration risk

e  Credit risk

»  Liquidity risk

+ interest rate risk

+ Capital management
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Strategic report (continued)

The Munager has eslablished a risk and financial management framework whose primary objective is to protect
the Partnership from events that hinder the achievement of the Partnership’s performance cbjectives, being to
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns to investors.

These objectives aim to limit undue counterparty exposure, ensure sufficient working capital exists and monitor the
management of risk at a Partnership level. Details of the Partnership's associated risk policies are found in note 9.

For and on bahalf of 3i Investments

—
Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory
IS May 2019

Pegicterad offics:
16 Palace Street
London

SWIE 54D
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Members’ report

The Directors of the Manager on behalf of the Members present the Members’ report and the financial statements
of the Partnership for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Background and general information

The Partnership was established on 2% June 2006 and is domiciled in England as an English Limited Partnership
under the Limited Partnership Act 1907. The registered office of the Partnership is 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JD. The General Partner of the Partnership is 3i EFV GP Ltd.

Activities and future prospects

The Partnership has been reported as a Qualifying Limited Partnership as defined under The Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008.

The principal activity of the Partnership is to carry on the business of an investor in Buy-out deals across all regions
in which 3i invests worldwide.

The Partnership is no longer investing other than in foliow-on financing. The Manager continues to realise individual
investments in appropriate circumstances.

The Manager does not foresee any future changes in the activity of the Partnership in the short term,

Partners' interests

A summary of movements in Partners' accounts is given in the Statement of changes in Partners’ accounts on
page 1.

Manager

The Manager has responsibility for managing and operating the Partnership and for managing its investment
portfolio. The Manager is authorised and reguiated by the Financial Conduct Authority.

Going concern

The Manager is satisfied that the Partnership has sufficient cash resources fo ensure that the Partnership can
continue to operate for the foreseeable future and for at least 12 months. Once the Partnership's life has ended in
November 2019 per the Limited Partnership Agreement, the Manager will act in its capacity as the liquidating
trustee to realise the Partnership’s assets in an orderly manner. For this reason, it continues to prepare the financial

statements on a going concem basis.

Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material events subsequent to the balance shest date.
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Members’ report (continued)

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Manager on behalf of the Members confirms that: (a) so far as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and (b) it has taken all steps it ought to have taken to make itself aware of any
relevant audit information and to estabiish that the auditor is aware of such information.

Auditor

During the year, Emst & Young LLP was reappointed and remains as auditor of the Partnership in accordance with
clause 12.4 of the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA”) and chapter 2, section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

For and on behaif of 3i Investments pic

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

{5 May 2019

Registered office:
" 16 Palace Street

London

SWH1E 54D
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Members’ responsibilities statement

The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 requires the Members to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The Members have appointed the Manager to prepare the Strategic report, Members’ report and the
financial statements.

The Manager is responsible for preparing the Strategic report, Members’ report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

The Manager has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"} as adopted by the European Union ("EU") and applicable law. Under law the Manager must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Partnership and the profit or loss of the Partnership for that period.

In preparing these financial staternents, the Manager is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state that the financial statements comply with IFRS as adopted by the EU, subject to any material
departure disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Partnership will continue in business.

The Manager has been appointed by the Members to fulfil the below respensibiiities of the Members.

The Manager is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which are sufficient to show and explain the
Partnership's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Partnership, and which enable the Manager to ensure that the financial stetements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008. The
Manager is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Manager confirms that they have complied
with the above regquirements in preparing the financial statements.
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Auditor’s report

Independent auditor’'s report to the Members of 3i Europartners Vb LP

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of 3i Europartners Vb LP for the year ended 31 March 2018 which
comprise the Statement of comprehensive income, the Statement of changes in Partners' accounts, the Statement
of financial position, the Statcment of cash flows, the accounting policies A to N and the related notes 1 to 12, The
financial reporting framework that has been appiied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of its
profit for the year then ended,;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS3 as adopted by the European Union; and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partrierships.

Ragie far nnininn
=agg Tor opiminn

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
taw. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report below. We are independent of the qualifying partnership in
accordance with the ethical requirements that arc relovant to aur audit of the financial statements in the LK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirermants.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK} require us to report
1o you where:

« the members’ use of the going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
is not appropriate; or

« the members have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership's ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financia
statements are authorised for issue.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 2 to 6, other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The members are responsible for the other information.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In cannection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the ather information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge oblained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to

report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships

In our opinion, based on the wark undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the members’ report for the financiat year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and the members' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have identified no material misstatements in the strategic report or the members’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying
partnerships requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of members' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Respective responsibilities of members

As explained more fully in the Members’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 6, the members are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from raterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stalements, the members are responsible for assessing the partnership's ability to
continue as a gaing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless members either intend to liquidate the partnership or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s report (continued)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of tha financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at https:/www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the qualifying partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying parinerships. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the gualifying partnership's members those matters we are required to state to thern in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
1o anyone other than the quaiifying partnership's members, as a bady, for our audit work, for this repon, or for the
opinions we have formed.

cgr;,, gf(if %‘/"f LLp

Maximikiano Bark (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

London

Date: f_S'/g"/ 2_0,/‘]
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Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2019

LP11420

Notes 2019 2018
€ €
Portfolio income 1 971,048 1,120,623
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments 4 319,116,710 397,491,781
Realised profits over value on the disposal of investments 2 50,818,620 16,229,541
Gross Investment return 370,906,378 414 841,945
Priority profit share 10 (1.351,858) {2.668,847)
Operating expenses 3 (417,888} {655,013)
Net interest expense (73,333) (90,868)
Exchange movements 8,400 (22,649)
Withholding tax expense - (27,327,082)
Profit and 1_'ota_l comprehensive income for the year 369071608 384077386
before carried intarest expense
Carried interest expense 7 (79,432,185) (82,820,243)

Profit and Total comprehensive income for the yaar

289,639,513

301,257,143

All items in the above statement are derived from continuing operations. No operations were acquired or

discontinued in the year.

The accounting policies on pages 14 to 16 and the notes on pages 17 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

10
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Statement of changes in Partners' accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Profit and
Capital Loan foss
Contributions account account Total
€ € € €
Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,459 - 1,108,031,816 1,108,033,275
Drawdowns from Partners - 5,385,104 - 5,385,104
Distributions to Partners - (5,385,104) {470,232,006) (475,617 110)
1,459 - 638,799,810 638,801,269
Profit and Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 289,639,513 289,639,513
Closing balance of Partners’
accounts 1.459 - 928,429,323 928 .440.782
for the year ended 31 March 2018
Profit and
Capital Loan loss
Contributions account account Total
€ € € €

Opening balance of
Partners’ accounts 1,459 49,575,361 857,276,803 1,006,853,623

Drawdowns from Pariners - 4 355567 - 4,355,567

Distributions to Partners - (53,930,928) (148,502,130} (203,433,058)
1,459 - 807,774,673 807,776,132

Profit and Total comprehensive

income for the year - - 301,257,143 301,257,143

Closging balance of Partners’

accounts 1,459 - 1,109,031,816 1.109,033,275

The accounting policies on pages 14 to 16 and the notes on pages 17 to 24 form an integral part of these financial
statements.

11
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Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2019

Notes 2019 2018

Assets € €
Non-current agsets
Investments 4

- Unquoted investments 1,302,299,945 1.403,858,126
Total non-current assets 1,302,299,945 1,403,858,126
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,378,849 2,227,994
Receivables 5 246,212 111,685
Total current assets 2,625,161 2339679
Total assets 1,304,925,106 1,406,197 805
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Carried interest payable 7 (376,227,628} (298,795,443)
Total non-current labilities (376,227 628) (296,795,443)
Current liabilities
Payables 6 (256,596} {369,087)
Total current liabilities (256,696) (369,087)
Total liabilities (376,484,324 (297,164,530)
Neat assets attributable to Partners 928,440,782 1,109,033,275
Represented by:
Capital contributions 1,459 1,459
Loan account . .
Profit and loss accounts 928,439,323 1,109,031,816
Net assets attributable to Partners 928,440,782 1,109,033,275
Carried interest aliocation 376,227,628 296,795,443
Total attributable to Partners 1,304,668 410 1,405,828,718

The accounting policies on pages 14 to 16 and the notes on pages 17 to 24 form an integral part of these financiai
statements.

The financial statements have been approved and authorised for issue by the Manager.

For ang on behalf of 3i Investments plc

Jasi Halai
Authorised Signatory

tS May 2019

12
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Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 201y
Notes 2019 2018
€ €
Cash flow from operating activities
Purchase of investments 4 (5,287,459) (6,472,323
Proceeds from investmenis 476,679,259 193,310,080
Portfelio income received 971,045 343,268
Other amounts paid to portfolio companies {134 ,628) -
Bank interest received 1,413 2,415
Bank interest paid (74,746) (93,282)
Priority profit share paid (1,351,858) (2,668,947)
Operating expenses paid (427,120) (565,733)
Net cash flow from operating activities 470,175,906 103,055,479
Cash flow from financing activities
Urawgowns 2,380,104 4,350,907
Distributions paid (475,617,110) (203,433,058)
Net cash flow from financing activities {470,232,006) {199.077.491)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 143,900 (15.222,013)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 2,227 994 17,476,065
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 6,955 (26,058}
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,378,849 2,227,994

The accounting policies on pages 14 to 16 and the notes on pages 17 to 24 form an integral part of these financial

statements.

13
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Accounting policies

A Statement of compliance These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board ("JASB") as adopted for use in the EU and in accordance
and compliance with the Partnership (Accounts) Regulation 2008 and the Companies Act 2006.

New standards and interpretations not applied

The IASB has issued the foilowing standards and interpretations to be applied to financial statements with periods
commencing on or after the following dates:

Effective for periods beginning on or after
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

The Manager has performed an assessment and does not anticipate that IFRS 16 will have a material impact on
its results as the Partnership does not have any ieases.

B Basis of preparation The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Partnership
accounts are disclosed below. These policies have been consistently applied and apply 1o all years presented.

The financial statemems have been prepared on a going concern basis and are presented in euros, the functiona!
currency of the Partnership, being the currency in which Partners’ capital commitments, drawdowns and
distributions are dencminated.

C Significant accounting estimates and judgements The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resuits of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the ravision affects both current and future periods. The most significant
techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies beiow.

The most significant estimates for the Partnership relate to the fair valuation of the investments and carried interest
payabie. The valuation methodologies for investments are disclosed in accounting policy E discussed in note 4.
The methodology for carried interest is disclosed in accounting policy N.

Carried interest payable is calculated based on the underlying agreements, and assuming all portfolio investments
are sold at their fair values at the balance sheet date. The actual amounts of carried interest received and paid will
depend an the cash realisations of these portfolio investments and valuations may change significantiy in the next
financial year. The fair valuation of the investment portfolio is itself a significant accounting estimate, as detailed
above. The sensitivity of carried interest to movements in the investment portfolio is disclosed in note 7.

The Manager has concluded that the Partnership continues to meet the definition of an investment entity as its
strategic objectives of investing in porifolio investments and providing investment management services to
investors for the purpose of generating returns in the form of investment income and capital appreciation remain
unchanged.

D Foreign currency transactions Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into euros at the closing rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Foreign currency transactions are

translated into euros at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction and exchange differences arising on
seftiement or translation of monetary items are taken to the Statement of comprehensive income.
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Accounting policies (continued)

E Investments Investments represent equity and loan instruments which are managed on a fair value basis.
Investments are recognised and de-recognised on their trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is
under a contract, the terms of which require the delivery or settlement of the investment.

Investments are classifiad as fair value through profit and ioss or are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration given. Unquoted investments, including both equity and loans, are subsequently measured at fair
value in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capitai {"IPEV") valuation guidelines, with
reference to the most appropriate information available at the time of measurement.

Interest-bearing loans accrue interest which is either settled in cash or capitalised on a regular basis and included
as part of the principal loan balance. The capitalisation of accrued interest is treated as part of investment additions
during the year, If the fair value of an investment is assessed to be beiow the principal value of the loan, the
Partnership recognises a fair value reduction against any interest income accrued from the date of the assessment
going forward. “Capitalisation at nil value” is the term used to describe the capitalisation of accrued interest which
has been fully provided for. These transactions are disclosed as additions to portfolio cost with an aqual reduction
in portfolio value,

Loans and equity are valued together to derive the fair value of the asset, where loan and equity instruments are
in the same investment and are invested and disposed of at the same time, and cannot be traded separately, To
arrive at (he fair vaiue of e unquoled equity and ioan iNsIruments, e enwe far vaiue of (e asset is esumared.
The vailue is then distributed amongst the different ican, equity and ather financial instruments accordingly.

F Revenue recognition The revenue recegnised by the Partnership is investment income, analysed into
the foliowing components:

i. Realised profils or losses over value on the disposal of investments are the difference between the fair vailue
of the proceeds received gross of withholding taxes less any directly attributable costs, on the sale of equity
and the repayment of loans and receivables, and its carrying value at the start of the accounting period.

It. Unrealised profits or losses on the revaiuation of investments are the movement in the carrying value of
investments between the start and end of the accounting period.

1. Portfolio income is income that is directly related to the return from individual investments. It is recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be economic benefit and the income can be reliably measured.

- Income from loans that is recognised as it accrues by reference to the principal outstanding and the
interest rate applicable and is only recognised to the extent that it is deemed recoverable.

- Transaction fees is recognised to the extent not already offset against priority profit share.

G Operating expenses All operating expenses incurred in relation to the management and administration
of the Partnership in accordance with the LPA are charged to the Statement of comprehensive income on an
accruals basis.

H Priority profit share A priority profit share is paid 1o the Generat Pariner, as a first charge on amounts
available for allacation among Partners, as determined by the EPA. The priority profit share is treated as an expense
in the Statement of comprehensive income and recognised on an accruals basis as it is a contractual obligation
with no recourse per the terms of the LPA.

{  Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise
cash at bank and short term deposits held at call with financiai institutions.

J Distributions All capital and income receipts are distributed among the Partners based on allocations
made in accordance with the LPA and at the discretion of the Manager. Distributions to Partners are accounted for
as a deduction to the loan account until the balance is repaid and then as a deduction to the profit and loss accounts.
A distribution is recognised in the year when a distribution notice is issued by the Manager.
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Accounting policies (continued)

K Capital contributions and loan account Partners have subscribed to the Partnership in commitments
represented by capital contributions and loan cornmitments. These items are recorded as equity as the timing and
amount of calls and repayments on these items are at the discretion of the Manager. Capital and loan amounts are
recognised when a drawdown notice is issued by the Manager.

L Receivables Assets, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated at their
cost less impairment. Assets are reviewed for recoverability and impairment using the expected credit loss model
simplified approach. The Partnership will recognise the asset's lifetime expected credit losses at each reporting
period where applicable in the Statement of comprehensive income,

M Payables Liabilities, other than those specifically accounted for under a separate policy, are stated based
on the amounts which are considered to be payable in respect of goods or services received up to the Statement
of financial position date.

N Carried interest In accordance with the LPA, the Founder Partner is entitled to receive a share of the
realised profits of the Partnership. The Founder Partner will receive its share of the profits after the performance
conditions described in the LPA have been met and the outstanding participation for all Partners, including the
General Partner, has been repaid. Carried interest is accrued at the balance sheet date where the calculation
indicates that the performance conditions would have been achieved and distribution arrangements met were the
underlying investments realised at their fair values, taking into account distributions paid to date. An accruai is
made equal to the Founder Partner's share of profits in excess of the performance conditions, discounted to reflect
the likely actual cash payment date, which may be materially later than the time of the accrual.

An increase or decrease in the carried interest due to the Founder Partner during the year is included as carried
interest expense in the Statement of comprehensive income. A recovery of previously accrued carmied interest
results from a decrease in carried interest due to the Founder Partner, at the reporting date.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Portfolio income

LP11420

2019 2018
€ €
interest income 763,071 1,120,623
Transaction fees 207,977 -
971,048 1,120,623
2 Realised profits over value on the disposal of investments

Unquoted 2019

Investments Total

€ €

Proceeds from investments gross of withholding tax 476,780,970 476,780,970
Opening carrying value of disposed investments (425,962,350) (425,962,350)

50,818,620 50,818,620

Unquoted 2018

Investments Total

€ €

Proceeds from investments gross of withholding tax 220,814,038 220,814,038
Opening carrying value of disposed investments (204 584.497) (204,584 ,497)

16,229 541 16,229,541

3 Operating expenses

2019 2018
€ €
Audit fees 13,919 13,691
Bank charges 796 1,192
Administration expenses 29,015 31,278
Tax compliance fees 179,121 194,604
Annual investor meeting and Advisory Board expenses 85,421 101,489
Portfolio company related costs 12,205 226,880
AIFMD depository fees 76,398 72,284
Fund reporting fees 21,016 13,485
417,889 855,013
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4 Investments

The fair value of unquoted investments comprises of equity instruments of €1,282,479,298 (2018: €1,256,448,066)
and loan instruments of €19,820,647 (2018: €147,410.060).

The holding period of the Parinership’s investments is on average greater than one year. For this reason the
investments are classified as non-current. It is not possible to identify with certainty investments that will be sold
within one year.

Fair value hierarchy

The Partnership classifies financial instruments measured at fair value in the investments according to the following
hierarchy:

Level Fair value input description Financial instruments

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) from active markets No Level 1 financial instruments

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 No Level 2 financial instruments
that are observable either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market Unquoted equity instruments and loan
data instruments

The Partnership's investments in equity instruments and oan instruments are classified by the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

2019 2019 2019 2019

Levet 1 Level 2 Levet 3 Total

€ € € €

Unguoted investments - - 1,302,299,945 1,302,289,945
- - 1,302,299,945 1,302,299,945

2018 2018 2018 2018

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

€ € € €

Unquoted investments - - 1,403,858,126 1,403,858,126
- - 1,403,858,126 1,403,858,126

As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Partnership did not hold any Levei 1 or Level 2 investments.

Investments are reviewed at each year end to ensure that they are correctly classified between Level 1, 2 and 3,
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy authorised above. When an investment's characteristics change during
the financial period and investments no longer meet the criteria of a given level, they are transferred into a more
appropriate level at the beginning of the relevant financial reporting period. There were no transfers in or out of
Level 3 in the year (2018: nil).
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4 Investments {continued)

Level 3 tair value reconciliation

LP11420

2019 2018

€ €

Opening fair value 1,403,858,126 1,203,701,162
Additions — cash 5,287 459 6,472,323
Additions — interest 4,060,205 8,661,041
— Of which capitalised at nil vaiue (4,060,205) (7,883,684)
Disposals, repayments and write-offs (425,962,350} (204,584 497)
Fair value movement 319,116,710 397,491,781
Closing fair value 1,302,299,045 1,403,858,126

A net profit of €370,806,378 (2018: €414,841,945) was recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income as
portfolio income, unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments and realised profits over value from the
dienneal nf invastmanis fram | aval 3 ar<ais

Level 3 inputs are sensitive to assumptions made when ascertaining fair value as described in accounting policy
E. Of investments held at 31 March 2019 and classified as Level 3, 100% (2018: 73.32%) were valued using a
muitipte of earnings and no assets (2018. 26.68%) were valued using aiternative methodologies.

The fair values of all other assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts in the Statement of financial
position.

Valuation Techniques

Valuation multiple

The vaiuation multiple is the main assumption applied in a multiple of earnings-based valuation. The multipie is
derived, by the Manager, from comparable listed companies or relevant market transaction multiples. Companies
in the same industry and, where possible, with a similar business model and profile are selected and then adjusted
for factors including liquidity risk, growth potential and relative performance. The value weighted average multiple
used when valuing the portfolio was 18.78x (2018:16.30x).

if the muitiple used to value each unquoled investment vaiued on an earnings multiple basis as at 31 March 2019
decreased by 5%, the impact on the investment portfolio would be a decrease of €85.88 million (2018: € 74.94
million) or 6.59% (2018: 7.28%). If the muitiple increased by 5% then the impact on the investmeant portfolio would
be an increase of €85.88 million (2018 € 74.94 million) or 6.59% (2018: 7.28%)

5 Receivables

2019 2018

€ €

Other receivables 246,212 114,685
246,312 111,685
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6 Payables
2019 2018
€ €
Accrued expenses 256,696 302,982
Cther Liability - 66,105
256,896 369,087
7 Carried interest payable
2019 2018
€ €
Opening carried inlerest payable 296,795,443 213,975,200
Carried interest payable recognised in the Statement of
comprehensive income during the year 79,432,185 82,820,243
376,227 628 296,795,443
Of which: payable is greater than 1 year 376,227,628 266,765,443

Carried interest payable at the balance sheet date is discounted to reflect the likely cash payment date, which may
be materially later than the time of the accrual. If the carried interest payable were not discounted, the accrual at
the balance sheet date would be higher at €393,033,965 (31 March 2018: €319,219,607).

Our policy is to classify our investment portfolio as non-current on the basis that there is always a very high degree
of uncertainty about a transaction occurring within one year. Consistent with such policy, the carry payable has
been similarly treated.

A 5% increase in the valuation of all individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would result in a
€12,466 129 increase in carried interest payable (31 March 2018: €13,052,415).

A 5% decrease in the valuation of all of individual assets in the underlying investment portfolio would resuit in a
€12,466,129 decrease in carried interest payable (31 March 2018: €13,052,415).

8 Taxation

No provision for taxation has been made as the Partnership has no liability to taxation. Any taxation arising on the
income and gains of the Partnership is payable by the individual Partners. Any withholding tax incurred by the
Partnership is charged to the Statement of comprehensive income.

9 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Partnership is subject to market price risk, currency risk, concentration risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and capital managemeant risk.

Market price risk
Market risk is the potential for changes in value due to the performance of underlying investments.
The Partnership's investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future market

conditions within which the investments operate. The Parinership’s market risk is regularly managed by the
Manager.

The Partnership’s management of price risk, which arises primarily from unquoted equity instruments, is through
the careful consideration of the investment, asset management and divestment decisions by the Manager. The
Partnerships’ sensitivity to price risk is analysed in note 4.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Currency risk

A significant exposure to currency risk is due to fluctuations in foreign currency translation. At 31 March 2018, the
Partnership was exposed fo currency risk relating to EUR/GBP and EUR/USD. At 31 March 2019, had EUR
strengthened / weakened by 5%, 10% or 15% in relation to these currencies, with all other variables held constant,
net assets attributable to Partners would have decreased / increased respectively by the amounts shown in the
following tabie.

5% 10% 15%

As at 31 March 2019 € € €
GBP (2,111) (4,030) (5,783)
usD (4,841) (9,242) (13,260)

(6,952) (13,272) {19,043)
As at 31 March 2018 € € €
GBP (1.562) (2.964) (4.252)
SEK 882 713 1,885,179 2,417,866
usD 759 1,449 2,080

881,920 1,683,664 2,415,694

In addition to this, the table below sets out the Partnership's exposure io foreign currency exchange rates with
regard to the Parinership's assets and liabilities at the year end. The Partnership’s total assets were
€1.304,925,108 (2019: €1,406,157,805) and the total liabilities (including accrual for carried Iinterest) were
€376,484,324 (2018 €297,1684,530).

% of total Partnership assets 2019 2018
SEK - 1.3%
- 1.3%
% of total Partnership liabilities 2019 2018
GBP - 0.1%
uUsD - 0.1%
- 0.2%

2019 100% (2018. 99.9%) of the Partnership's liabilities were denominaled in euros.

Concentration risk

The Manager seeks to diversify risk through significant dispersion of investments by geography, economic sector
and size as well as through the maturity profile of its investment portfolio.

The Partnership participates in two portfolio Investments and, as a consequence, the aggregate returmn of the
Partnership may be materially and adversely affacted by the unfavourable performance of the largest invesiment.
This investment is concentrated in the non-food discount retall industry and thus the Partnership's performance will
be closely linked to the performance of this industry and the Partnership could be severely impacted by adverse
developments affecting this industry.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential that an issuer, counterparty or underlying investment third party will be unable to meet
commitments that it has entered into with the Partnership and/or the commitments with underlying investments of
the Partnership.

Credit risk in relation to the debt element of the Partnership’s investments is considered and monitored as part of
the valuation process described in note 4. The credit quality of loans and receivables within the investments is
based on the financial performance of the individual portfolio companies. For thoge assets that are not past due it
is believed that the risk of default is small and that capital repayments and interest payments will be made in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions of the Partnership’s investment. Where the portfolio company
has failed or is expected to fail in the next 12 months, the increase in credit risk is included within the overall

assessment of the fair value of the investment.

At the balance sheet date, there are no balances which were past due or impaired. Hence, no separate maximum
exposure to credit risk disclosure is provided for these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Partnership's liquidity risk is tha risk that the Partnership will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet
cammitments as they fall due. The Manager is responsible for determining the level of liquid funds to be held by
the Partnership. A prudent liquidity risk management approach is adopted to ensure sufficient cash is available for
both operational expenses and investments through capital calls from Partners and the retenticn cf proceeds from
investments. As at 31 March 2019, the Partnership has undrawn commitments of €33,518,630 (2018: €38,903,733)
which is callable by the Manager in accordance with the LPA.

The Partnership's investments are subject to liguidity risk in the normal course of business. As at 31 March 2019,
the Partnership held €1,302,299,045 (2018: €1,403,858,126) in investments that it considered to be illiquid. The
Manager manages this risk by ensuring that sufficient funds exist to meet outstanding commitments, other liabilities
incurred by the operating activities of the Partnership and short term liquidity needs, as they fall due.

Liabilities arising from Carried interest payable will cnly crystallise if and when the performance conditions are met,
and will only be paid once proceeds are received on the sale of investment of cash distribution from underlying
assets, which ensures that sufficient assets will be available to meet them when they fall due (see accounting policy
N).

The following table analyses the Parinership's liabilities inta relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the Statement of financial position date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Liabilities Liabilities Liabilities

iess than 1 between more than 5
As at 31 March 2019 year 1-5years years Total
€ € € €
Other payables and accrued expenses 256,696 - - 256,696
256,696 - - 256,698

As at 31 March 2018

Other payables and accrued expenses 369,087 - - 369,087
369,087 - - 369,087

Carried interest payable greater than one year of €376,227,628 (31 March 2018: €296,795,443) has no stated
maturity as carried interast results from investment related transactions and it is not possible to identify with
certainty the timing of when the investments will be sold. The Partnership has no other liabilities to analyse into

relevant maturity groupings.
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9 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

[nterest rate risk

The Partnership has no significant direct exposure to interest rate risk as its investments in debt instrumants are in
fixed rate ioans.

Capital Management

The capital of the Partnership is considered to be the capital contributions, loan accounts and profit and loss
acocounts, which totalled €928,440,782 (2018; €1,108,033,275) at the reporting date. There are no externally
imposed capital requirements on the Partnership. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the General Pariner
may request additional contributions from the Partners in the form of drawdowns for operating expense or
investment purposes and distribute capital back to the Partners on the sale of investments and receipt of income
yield. No changes were made in the Partnership's objectives, policies or processes for the management of capital
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

10 Related parties

During the year the Partnership entered into tranaactions, in the ordinary course of business, with certain related
patiics. Cauil Gaicyury Ui 1eialeu paily and iis inopact un the fivancial siaiemnenis is delaiied beiow,

Carried interest

The Parlnership pays cainied inleres! to the Founder Parlner when gerlain condilions relating to the performance
of the Parinership are met, The amounts recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2019 and in the Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019 are set out in note 7.

General Partner

The Parnnership pays a priority profit share to the General Partner. During the investment periad, the Generai
Pariner is entitled to receive a priority profit share equal to 1.75% of the acquisition cost of investments, reduced
to the extent that the General Partner or any respective related parly is in receipt of any fees related to the
Partnership's activities. After the investment period expiry date, the priority profit share is equal to 1.25% of the
aggregate acquisition cost of investments as determined at the investment period expiry date, reduced by the
acquisition cost of investments that have been realised or permanently written off at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period. The Partnership has stopped paying priority profit share after 15 November 2018, being the
twelfth anniversary of the Partnership’s final closing date.

The General Partner is a related party of the Partnership, being responsible for the financial and operating decisions
of the Partnership. The General Partner is a wholly owned subsidiary of 3i Holdings pic, a subsidiary of 3i.

2019 2018
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Priority profit share 1,351,858 2,668,947

Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year - -

Management, administrative and secretarial arrangements

During the year a number of costs were recharged between the Partnership and 3i plc, a subsidiary of 3i, in
accordance with the LPA, in relation to operational and investment expenses.

2019 2018
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Recharged costs 341,493 287,209
Statement of financial position
Accrued at the end of the year 237,351 -
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10 Related parties (continued)

Related undertakings

The Partnership makes investments in the equity of unguoted and quoted investments where it does not have
control but may be able to participate in the financial and operating poiicies of that company. i is presumed that it
is possible to exert significant influence when the equity holding is greater than or equal to 20%. The total amounts
included for investments where the Partnership has significant influence but not control are as follows:

2019 2018
Statement of comprehensive income € €
Portfolio income 800,044 1,120,623
Unrealised profits on the revaluation of investments (3,340,317) 107,992 446
Realised profits on the disposal of investments 38,907,911 13,841,362
Statement of financial position
Unquoted investments 19,820,647 419,251,940

11 Related undertakings

The Companies Act 2008 as applicable to Qualifying Limited Partnerships by The Partnerships (Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires disclosure of certain information about the Partnership’s related undertakings and this
is set out below. Related undertakings are subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates and other significant holdings.
tn this context, significant means a shareholding greater than or equal to 20% of the nominal vaiue of any class of
shares.

The Partnership's related undertakings at 31 March 2019 are listed below.

Associates
. . _Country of- Principat
Description Holding ! share class Address incorporation activity
or residence
Chrysanthes 1 Sarl  26.69% of Ordinary shares 9 rue Sainte Zithe, L-2763 Luxembour; :;\(:E?tment
i e Y Luxembourg 9 Vehi crl'g

The Partnership has no interest in any subsidiaries or joint ventures.

12 Controlling party

The Partnership has no ultimate controiling party.
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